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ADDENDUM #1 – CLARIFICATION FOR QUESTIONS RECEIVED
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the following addendum serves to provide clarification and to
answer questions received on the Request for Proposal for Defined Benefit Pension Plan
Investment and Custodial Services.
Question 1. Could the Township provide us with a copy of each Plan’s current investment policy
statement? Attached.
Question 2. What is the current funded status of each Plan? Overall, at 1/1/21 actuarial valuations,
Police funded at 78.5%, Non-Uniform at 89.5%, and LOSAP at 89.1%.
Question 3. Do the Plans currently utilize liability driven investing (LDI)? If so, is this approach
something the Township is seeking to continue? No, they have utilized a structured allocation to
investing not based on cash flow to cover liabilities.
Question 4. (A) Will respondent be acting as directed trustee for the pension plans or only custodial
services are needed?; (B) The RFP doesn’t mention trustee services. Who is the current trustee of
each plan? Directed Trustee services will be a consideration. Current providers are only providing
custodial services at this time. Cost for enhance services such as directed trustee should be broken
out separately for comparison purposes
Question 5. Are there any areas (performance, service, fees, etc.) that the Township is seeking
improvement upon? Largest area is consolidation, as there are three different entities managing
portions of the funds (only one coordinating benefit payments/related reporting)
Question 6. Does the Finance Department have a preference for mutual funds, ETFs, separate
accounts, or individual securities? Is there a view shared on active versus passive investment
approaches? No preference on investment solutions or vehicles but one would expect
diversification to mitigate risk, reduce costs, and maximize results relative to comparable
benchmarks. Combination of active and passive solutions would be preferred.
Question 7. Page 5 of the RFP under Section III Professional Services, question 1 b states: “Identify
the limits, if any, of services provided under your proposed fees and your fee schedule for other
services included in your proposal but not specifically addressed in the table below”. Is there a table
missing from the RFP request currently? The reference was in error, as the table was removed – it
should note “Identify the limits, if any, of services provided under your proposed fees and your
fee schedule for other services included in your proposal but not specifically addressed above”.
Question 8. Would you be looking for the selected vendor to make the benefit payments to
retirees? Yes, this service is currently being performed by one of our pension management
firms.
Question 9. (A) Would you be looking for the selected vendor to provide any participant
recordkeeping services or benefit calculations?; (B) May I ask who the TPA is please?? Is there, or
will there be, a separate RFP for those services?? Currently, these services are provided by our
actuaries (Mockenhaupt for the Police and Non-Uniformed Pension Plans, and Conrad Siegel for
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the LOSAP Plan) – however, we may wish to consider the selected firm for pension
management/custody to quote and perform those services in the future.
Question 10. The tax reporting forms for LOSAP varies from vendor to vendor based on the
interpretation of the Internal Revenue Code and the custodian of the assets. What form is currently
being issued to retirees from the LOSAP? Can we receive a redacted sample? The custodian
submits 1099-R forms for recipients.
Question 11. I am preparing a response to your Request for Proposal for Defined Benefit Pension
Plan Investment Management and Custodial Services. I will be sending you a hard copy response
and am wondering how many copies you will need? Three copies will suffice.
Question 12. Will the Township dictate what form to report LOSAP payments on, or will the vendor
be responsible for that decision? The vendor will be responsible for selecting the form for annual
reporting, based on their interpretation of Internal Revenue Code requirements relative to
reporting such benefits to recipients.
Question 13. Who administers each plan? The Township’s LOSAP Plan is administered by Wells
Fargo. Wells Fargo also administers portions of the Police and Non-Uniformed Pension Plans, and
performs all payments and reporting to benefit recipients. City National Rochdale and Principal
also administer portions of the Police and Non-Uniformed Pension Plans, but only for investment
purposes. We will be consolidating all these plans and services to a single firm through award in
this RFP.
Question 14. What is your anticipated start date?? The Township intends to select a firm in
March/April 2022.
Question 15. The way I’m interpreting the RFP, you are asking us to manage the assets and process
the pension payments with required 1099 and IRS filings. Correct?? Correct.
Question 16. Who will be communicating to us who gets paid, how much and when?? Monthly
payments to all beneficiaries will be made based on “static” census of payments, and Township
will communicate any change (i.e. COLA, cease due to death, etc.). New retiree information will
be provided by Township, based on Township/Actuary computation.
Question 17. Is there some kind of monthly payment file?? How does this data get
transmitted?? See [Question 16] above – currently we utilize Wells Fargo’s portal to enter/amend
benefits.

End of Questions and Answers

End of Addenda
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LOWER PAXTON TOWNSHIP
INVESTMENT OBJECTIVES
FOR ITS PENSION FUNDS
I. Introduction
This statement of investment policies and objectives is set forth in order that:
A.

There is a clear understanding on the part of the trustees of the investment policy
and objectives of the Lower Paxton Township Pension Fund )”the fund”).

B.

The investment managers are given guidance and limitations and understand what
is expected of them.

C.

The trustees have a basis for evaluation of the investment performance of the
fund.

It is the intent of this statement to establish an attitude and/or philosophy, which will
guide the investment managers toward the performance desired. It is intended that the
objectives be sufficiently specific to be meaningful, but sufficiently flexible to be
practicable. The fund exists for the purpose of providing pension benefits to qualified
participants and their beneficiaries. The fund is a defined benefit pension plan.
Contributions are made by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, Lower Paxton
Township, and plan participants.
II. Investment Objectives
The fund is a balanced portfolio of guaranteed investment contracts, equity, fixed
income, and cash equivalent securities and, as such, is intended to be more aggressive
than fixed income oriented portfolios and less aggressive than equity oriented portfolios.
In this context, aggressive relates to such issues as investment vehicles, diversification
among economic and industry sectors and individual securities, and expected long-term
rates of return and return volatility.
Within this framework, the investment objectives are stated in order of importance.
A.

Preservation of Capital: This objective recognizes the nature of the fund, its
purpose, its participants, and source of funds. That is, the pension fund exists for
the purpose of providing benefits to retired employees. Assets must be invested
and managed prudently.
Therefore, capital gains, once earned, are to be protected. For example, during
protracted down markets, cash can be raised up to the maximum permissible level
so that capital losses are limited.
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When it is believed by the investment managers that the risks of investing in
equities and/or fixed income outweigh the rewards, it is preferred that upside
potential be sacrificed rather than risk significant losses in down markets.
B.

Long Term Growth of Capital: It is recognized that short-term fluctuations may
result in the loss of capital earned on occasion (i.e. negative rates of return).
However, in the absence of contributions and withdrawals, the asset value of the
fund should grow in the long run and earn rates of return greater than the balanced
index (described in section III. C. 3.) while avoiding excessive risk (see IV. B. 1.).

C.

Preservation of Purchasing Power: Asset growth, exclusive of contributions and
withdrawals, should exceed the rate of inflation in order to preserve the
purchasing power of the participants’ assets.

D.

Meet or Exceed the Stated Actuarial Assumption: (See 111. B. 1.).

III. Investment Goals
A.

Investment goals are expected to be achieved over a full-market
1.

B.

C.

cycle which has historically lasted from three to five years, and these
results should be considered only relative to funds with comparable
objectives. Total return shall be measured by the performance of all assets
under management, whether invested in equity or fixed income securities
or liquid reserves, and will include interest as well as realized and
unrealized investment gains and losses (total return).

During the measurement period described in III. A., the following minimum goal
is to be achieved:
1.

Match or exceed the actuarial rate of return assumption of 6.75% annually.

2.

To meet the payment of all future benefits to retirees, beneficiaries, and
other plan participants.

3.

To enhance, as well as preserve, the assets of the plans.

4.

To comply with all legislation affecting the plans.

In addition to the investment goal stated to III. B. 1., the following investment
goals are to be achieved:
1.

The Large Cap equity investment of the Plan will be expected to generate
a premium over and above the S&P 500 composite index, or if assuming
low risk, match the index.
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2.

The Mid/Small Cap equity investment of the Plan will be expected to
generate a premium over and above the combined S&P 400 and S&P 600
composite (72% S&P 400 and 28% S&P 600 by market capitalization), or
if assuming low risk, match the composite.

3.

The International equity investment of the Plan will be expected to
generate a premium over and above the Dow Jones World (excluding the
U.S.) index.

4.

The fixed income investment of the Plan will be expected to generate
equal to or greater than the Lehman Aggregate Intermediate Bond Index.

IV. Investment Policies
A.

General
1.

B.

Investments are consistent with fiduciary standards; that is
a.

the safeguards and diversity that a prudent investor would adhere
to must be present, and

b.

all transactions of the fund must be in the sole interest of plan
participants.

2.

The investment managers are given full investment discretion consistent
with the investment objectives and guidelines provided herein regarding
the purchase and sale of individual securities.

3.

Realization of gains and losses should be viewed solely in terms of
investment merits.

4.

Subject to the restrictions listed below and consistent with the investment
objectives and purpose of the fund, the investment managers shall have
full discretion as to the asset mix between equities, fixed income, and cash
equivalents, diversification among individual securities, economic and
industry sectors, selection of individual equity, fixed income and cash
equivalent securities and instruments and portfolio turnover.

Risk
1.

The volatility of returns, as measured by the standard deviation of
quarterly rates of return for the portfolio, will be monitored and compared
on a continuing basis after sufficient data is available. The portfolio
standard deviation should not exceed the balanced index over a period of
three years without the consultation of the trustees.
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C.

D.

Fixed Income Investments Limitations
1.

Fixed income investments may be maintained at a maximum of 50% of
the total assets managed by an investment manager based upon market
value.

2.

With the exception of cash equivalents, as noted, not more than 10% of
the allowable fixed income assets are to be invested in the obligations of
any one issuer, excluding both obligations of the U.S. Government either
direct or indirect, and guaranteed investment contracts.

3.

Marketable bonds must be rated AA or better and commercial paper
REPOs must have a rating of not less than A1 by Standard and Poor’s or
P1 by Moody’s. REPOs are not rated as such but standards must be
adhered to.

4.

No restrictions are placed on investments in U.S. Government obligations
(including fully guaranteed agencies).

5.

The weighted average maturity by market value of the fixed income assets
(excluding cash equivalent securities maturing in less than one year)
should not exceed ten years.

6.

Certificates of Deposit
a.

Must be issued by a major depository that has capital and surplus
of $100 million or more.

b.

Limited to maturity of one year or less.

c.

Investment in any one issuer is not to exceed 10% of total fund
assets at market.

d.

Issuer must be federally insured.

Equities
Limitations
1.

Equity investment may be maintained at a maximum of 60% of the total
assets managed by an investment manager based upon market value.
However, 10% must be in a high yield equity income investment. To be
counted as high yield dividend stock there must be a consistent history of
high dividend yield.
a.

High Dividend & Income Investment Objective - Provide income
and long-term capital appreciation.
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b.

High Dividend & Income Investment Strategy:


Diversified portfolio of high-quality companies across sectors and
size.



Selected stocks primarily from a universe of common and
preferred stocks of any size, master limited partnerships, and real
estate investment trusts. The portfolio is diversified across size
and industries to provide long-term return potential across varying
economic and market conditions.



Lower valuations to provide potential for purchasing power
protection over the long term.
In selecting securities for the portfolio, look for high-quality
companies with a stable dividend history, potential for dividend
growth, strong financial condition with minimal debt, and
attractive valuation.



Attractive tax-advantaged yield.
Versus other equity income strategies, the portfolio intends to
maintain higher yield, lower price/earnings ratio, and more midand small-cap holdings, in order to provide greater income,
potential for growth, and uncovered opportunity.



Reliable income stream to smooth volatility.
The portfolio’s income stream is a significant component of total
return and may result in lower volatility and increased downside
protection versus a broad-market portfolio.



Active volatility management in context of entire portfolio.



Emphasis on yield and total return.

2.

Subject to the limitations stated herein and consistent with the investment
objectives and purpose of this fund, the investment managers shall have
full discretion as to the selection of equities portfolio turnover and
diversification standards in order to assure full flexibility in the
management of the equity segment.

3.

It is expected that the equity portfolio will be managed with the objective
of maximizing total return. Therefore, sales of securities need not be
restricted in any manner but shall be based on the manager’s perception of
the investment merits of each security in the portfolio.
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E.

4.

Not more than 5% of the allowable equity assets of the fund under
management shall be invested in the securities of any one issuing
corporation.

5.

Not more than 25% of the allowable equity assets of the fund under
management shall be invested in any one industry.

6.

Domestic stock investment options of all sizes (large-cap, mid-cap, and
small-cap) and all styles (value, growth, and blend) are permitted. Such
options may be broadly diversified or concentrated (sector funds) and may
be either actively or passively (indexed) managed.

7.

International or foreign stock investment options of all sizes (large-cap,
mid-cap, and small-cap) and all styles (value, growth, and blend) are
permitted. Such options may be broadly diversified or concentrated
(sector funds), may include regional and emerging market funds, and may
be either actively or passively (indexed) managed. Such funds shall not
exceed 10% of the equity assets managed by an investment manager.

8.

Only owned real estate investment options, including real estate
investment trusts of all types and other commingled real estate equity
investment options are permitted not to exceed 10% of the total equity
assets managed by an investment manager.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Limitations

F.

1.

All cash should be invested in interest bearing securities. U.S.
Government Securities, commercial paper, money market funds, CDs, and
PLGIT accounts are authorized providing they have a maturity of 91 days
or less.

2.

There is no minimum cash requirement, while a 100% cash position is
permitted if conditions indicate this is appropriate.

3.

Stable value investment options, including money market funds, stable
value funds, and guaranteed interest arrangements are permitted.

Other Restrictions
The following assets and/or transactions are expressly prohibited:
1.

Selling short

2.

Commodity/Futures
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3.

Letter stocks

4.

Non-marketable securities

5.

Margin transactions

6.
Derivatives, such as futures and options, or repurchase agreements shall
only be permitted as an investment option within mutual fund investments, provided that
derivatives and repurchase agreements are not specifically designed for speculative
purposes or to leverage the portfolio. Derivatives and repurchase agreements shall
compose no more than a targeted amount of 10%, nor more than a maximum amount of
15% of the portfolio under management.
7.

Mortgage, pledge, or hypothecate securities

V. Investment Performance Review
The performance of the total fund will be measured on a quarterly basis as follows:
A.

The equity and fixed income segments and total fund performance (both rates of
return and risk will be measured against commonly accepted benchmarks.

B.

The total fund will be compared to the Consumer Price Index and U.S. Treasury
bills.

C.

The total fund will be compared to a universe of portfolios with percentages or
equity and fixed income to be indicative of the asset allocation of the fund itself.

D.

Consideration shall be given to the extent to which the investment results are
consistent with the objectives and goals as set forth in this statement.

VI. Investment Consultants and Managers
The fund may engage the services of an investment consultant and investment manager
who possess the necessary specialized research facilities and skilled manpower to meet
these investment objectives and guidelines. The trustees require the investment managers
to adhere to the statutes of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania regulating the fiduciary
affairs of public employee retirement systems as they relate to the plan assets.
The investment consultant should be able to act as an independent third party consultant
to avoid conflict of interest. The consultant must demonstrate the ability to perform
proper due diligence in evaluating the investment managers.
VII. Communications
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A.

Consultant and investment manager communications with the trustees.
The trustees expect an open and constant line of communication with the
consultants and investment managers.

B.

1.

Provide quarterly portfolio valuations at cost and at market, timely
confirmations of all transactions, and a monthly summary of all
transactions. Investment manager fees shall be deducted from the account
and the rate of return for the account shall be shown as net of all fees.

2.

Provide an explanation of contemplated major shifts in investment
strategy or manager style before implementation.

3.

Meet annually with the Board of Trustees unless requested to meet on a
more frequent basis.
a.

Review past investment performance, evaluate the current
investment outlook and discuss investment strategy.

b.

Provide information regarding major changes in investment policy
that may result in major investment strategy changes.

c.

Review any significant changes in management, research,
personnel, or ownership within the investment management firms.

4.

Other communications that the consultant and investment manager feels
are necessary to facilitate achievement of the fund’s objectives and goals.

5.

It is the responsibility of the investment managers to report any
suggestions or alterations in these guidelines or specific contract
considerations, which may be desirable for the achievement of greater
satisfactory investment results.

Trustee communication with consultant and investment managers.
1.

On a timely basis, provide the consultant and investment manager with
revisions of the master statement of investment policy and objectives.

2.

Report any significant changes in the assessment of the income
requirement, risk-taking capabilities, or other vital characteristics
concerning management of the plans.

VIII. Summary
A.

All investments are to be made for the benefit of the plan participants in a
prudent manner.
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B.

It is expected that the investment managers will manage the assets so that
the results will meet the objectives and goals as set forth in the statement.
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